
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
MEETING MINUTES

December 12, 2005

PRESENT:
Mark Kaplan, Chair, Board of Selectmen
Douglas W. Lyon, Selectman
Ruth I. Clough, Selectman
Jessie Levine, Town Administrator

OTHERS PRESENT:
Les Norman, Chair, Conservation Commission
Bob Lavoie, New London resident
Carolyn Dube, Argus Champion
Debbie Cross, Intertown Record

Chair Kaplan called the meeting to order at 8:05 AM.

Clark Lookout Easement: Ms. Levine said that due to title search and warranty deed issues, the
conservation easement was not ready for signing this morning.  Les Norman was present on behalf of the
Conservation Commission and departed when it was confirmed that the documents were not ready.

Meeting Minutes: Mr. Lyon moved to approve the minutes of November 28 and December 5, 2005.
Second Ms. Clough and approved 3-0.

Memorial Funds: Ms. Levine said that she had spoken to numerous residents of New London who hoped
that the Town would open funds to assist the families of Bob Andrews and Ryan Haynes.  Ms. Levine
said that she has discussed the idea of educational or scholarship funds with both families, and both have
approved.  Ms. Clough said she thinks it’s a wonderful idea that should be done, and she is glad that the
Town will be making it happen. Ms. Levine said that she sees the Town’s role as providing a vehicle to
collect the funds, which will later be deposited into educational trust funds for Bob’s three boys and for
Ryan Haynes’s niece, Paige.  Mr. Lyon said that documents should be written up for the long-term plans
of each trust, and Ms. Levine said that she will work with each family to create trust documents once it is
known how much is collected.  Ms. Clough suggested that the funds not be limited to college but include
other educational opportunities as well.

Ms. Levine said that many people have expressed the hope that contributions to the funds would be tax
deductible, but she does not think that will be possible.  Town counsel and other attorneys are looking
into the question, but generally contributions to governmental entities are tax deductible only if they are
used for public purposes.

Employee Holiday Party: Ms. Levine said that given the tragedies of last week, she would like to hold a
town-wide employee lunch on Friday, December 23 at noon at the Fire Station.  She said usually the
departments celebrate the holidays separately, and she will encourage them to celebrate together this year.

Hughes Zoning Violation: Ms. Levine reminded the Selectmen of the Hughes matter, which started as a
zoning violation on Messer Pond, where the Hughes had built a 16 x 20’ (320 square feet)) deck within
50-feet of the shoreline for use by their daughter and her boyfriend, who are both visually impaired.  The



Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes
December 12, 2005
Page 2

Hughes appealed the zoning violation to the Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA), which granted them a
variance for as long as they own the property, provided that they apply for a building permit and reduce
the size of the deck to 160 square feet.  Ms. Levine said that while inspecting the construction per the
building permit, Peter Stanley had measured the deck at 10’9” by 16’5”, which comes out to 176 square
feet.  Ms. Levine spoke on the phone with Jack Hughes and informed him that the measurements did not
meet the ZBA’s requirements, and he had explained that the increased size was the result of his mis-
measurement prior to the ZBA hearing and the trim pieces.  Ms. Levine had informed him that he still had
to comply with the ZBA ruling, and he asked her to speak with the Selectmen.

Mr. Lyon said that Board of Selectmen not only cannot overrule a ZBA decision but are obliged to
enforce them.  The Selectmen cannot create a new rule after the ZBA has already made a decision.  Chair
Kaplan said the property owner must comply with the variance or return to the ZBA for a new ruling.  Mr.
Lyon pointed out that the ZBA is the appeal board for the Board of Selectmen, and not the other way
around.  Mr. Lavoie said that the Board of Selectmen should not set a precedent to allow people to not
follow the rules.  Chair Kaplan asked Ms. Levine to send the Hughes a letter instructing them to reduce
the size of the deck or return to the ZBA.

Town Clock: Ms. Levine said she had been contacted by Hank Otto on behalf of the New London
Historical Society, which has been working on repairing or replacing the town clock at the First Baptist
Church.  Mr. Otto inquired about the timeline for submitting budget requests, and said that although the
group working on the restoration will seek outside fundraising, they may have to ask the Town to
contribute towards the costs.  Mr. Otto had said that to replace the clock with a new clock that chimed
during the day would cost approximately $10,000, while restoring the original clock to the same level
would cost $20,000.  The Board of Selectmen discussed their hope to receive more information from the
Historical Society that explains the history of the clock, how the Town came to be the owner of it, how
the costs will be split, when it would chime, etc.  Mr. Lyon said he would like the group to make a
recommendation to the Board of Selectmen and Budget Committee, and ultimately the voters can decide
how to spend their tax dollars.  Ms. Clough suggested that if outside fundraising were to take place, they
could ask Town Meeting to approve “up to” a certain amount of money.

Citizen’s Advisory Committee: Mr. Lyon and Ms. Clough reported that Saturday’s Citizen’s Advisory
Committee meeting, at which the Street Lighting Committee presented its findings, went well.  There was
a lot of discussion about light color, payback time, and Main Street lighting, all of which the Committee
will work on.  Ms. Clough said that the CAC also discussed the fact that the Street Lighting Committee
had not looked at adding lights as a result of this study, nor had they proposed regulations regarding
private lighting.  Mr. Lavoie suggested that the Town have a consistent application for new street lights.
Ms. Clough said that Tom Brennan had also suggested the coordination of street lighting and school bus
stops.

Planning Board Alternates: Ms. Clough asked whether there had been any work done to appoint alternates
to the Planning Board.  Ms. Levine said she will review the volunteer appointment process to see where
they had left off.

Assessing: Mr. Lyon said he had received many positive comments about the response and
personableness of the new assessors, Norm Bernaiche and Dan Fitzgerald.  Ms. Levine agreed that they
have been well received, and they are working steadily on improving the accuracy of the data in all three
towns.

Building Permits:



Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes
December 12, 2005
Page 3

• Richard Cohn, Forest Acres Road (Map 119, Lot 009) permit to construct and complete a 30’ x 44’
cape style modular home with two car garage underneath and 8’ x 39’ exterior deck – Approved
(Permit 05-154)

Sign Permit Applications:

• NONE

Other Items for Signature:

• Disbursement & Payroll Voucher for the week of December 12, 2005 – Approved

• Application for use of the Sydney Crook Conference Room for Adventures in Learning starting the
week of Monday, April 17 for 6 weeks, Tuesday, April 18 for eight weeks, Wednesday, April 19 for
six weeks, Thursday, April 20 for three weeks, Friday, April 21 for six weeks from 9:00 a.m.-12:00
p.m. - Approved

• 2005 Equalization Municipal Assessment Data Sheets Certificate - Approved

Abatement Recommendations:

• Donald & Betty Ballou, 335 Bunker Road (Map 062, Lot 021) – Approved
• David Barton & Dariel Connors, Barton Row (Map 065, Lot 005) – Approved
• Joseph & Dolores Belle Isle, 11 Old Coach Road (Map 123, Lot 010) – Approved
• Christopher & Sara Caron, 240 Bunker Road (Map 062, Lot 036) – Approved
• James J. Catrambone, 95 Spruce Lane (Map 045, Lot 040, Block 017), Veterans Credit omitted

second half of billing 2005 - Approved
• Dariel Connors Trust, Bartons Row (Map 064, Lot 007) – Approved
• Barbara Dziura, 1457 King Hill Road (Map 129, Lot 007) – Approved
• John & Janet Gunning, 624 Bunker Road (Map 076, Lot 029) – Approved
• William & Bernice Hayes Trust, 31 Sherman Street (Map 078, Lot 012) – Approved
• James & Karen Howell, 130 Summit View Road (Map 138, Lot 008) – Approved
• Cynthia Mathewson, 80 Balsam Acres (Map 095, Lot 008) – Approved
• Donald & Elizabeth Little, 208 Knights Hill Road (Map 094, Lot 019) – Approved
• Charles & Martha Martin, 143 Rowell Hill Road (Map 123, Lot 026) – Approved
• New Hampshire Investment Properties, 495 Elkins Road (Map 078, Lot 001) – Approved
• Beth Perregeaux, 662 Bunker Road (Map 076, Lot 027) – Approved
• Townsend Farms Trust, Whitney & Mary Wendel Trustees, 133 Turkey Hill Run (Map 051, 021) –

Approved
• Woodland Trust, 327 Little Sunapee Road (Map 046, Lot 009) – Approved

The Selectmen voted to adjourn the meeting at 9:30 AM.

Respectfully submitted,

Jessie Levine
Town Administrator


